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STATE OF CONNECTICUT 
CONNECTICUT SITING COUNCIL 

 
 
IN RE: 
 
A PETITION OF CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 
D/B/A VERIZON WIRELESS FOR A 
DECLARATORY RULING ON THE NEED TO 
OBTAIN A SITING COUNCIL CERTIFICATE 
FOR THE MODIFICATION OF AN EXISTING 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT 194 
MOUNT PARNASSUS ROAD, EAST 
HADDAM, CONNECTICUT 
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: 
: 
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: 
: 
: 
: 
: 

 
 
PETITION NO. ____ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FEBRUARY 22, 2024 

 
 

PETITION FOR A DECLARATORY RULING: 
INSTALLATION HAVING NO 

SUBSTANTIAL ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL EFFECT 
 
 
I. Introduction 

 Pursuant to Sections 16-50j-38 and 16-50j-39 of the Regulations of Connecticut State 

Agencies (“R.C.S.A.”), Cellco Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless (“Cellco”) (collectively the 

“Petitioners”) hereby petitions the Connecticut Siting Council (the “Council”) for a declaratory 

ruling (“Petition”) that no Certificate of Environmental Compatibility and Public Need 

(“Certificate”) is required under Section 16-50k(a) of the Connecticut General Statutes 

(“C.G.S.”) to modify the existing wireless telecommunications facility at 194 Mount Parnassus 

Road (Route 434) in East Haddam, Connecticut.  The proposed facility modifications involve a 

40-foot extension of the existing 121-foot lattice tower and the installation of Cellco’s antennas 

and remote radio heads at the 146-foot level of the extended tower. Cellco’s radio equipment, a 

battery cabinet and a diesel-fuel back-up generator would be installed on the ground adjacent to 

the tower and within the existing fenced compound.  If approved, the modified facility would 
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allow Cellco to provide its customers and emergency service providers with enhanced wireless 

services in central portions of East Haddam, in areas unserved or underserved today.  Cellco has 

identified this cell site as its “East Haddam 3 Facility”. 

II. Factual Background 

On February 19, 2015, the Siting Council approved Petition No. 1130, a request by the 

State of Connecticut (“State”) Department of Emergency Services and Public Protection 

(“DESPP”) to replace the existing 120-foot monopole tower with a new 120-foot lattice tower at 

194 Mount Parnassus Road (Route 434) in East Haddam (the “Property”).  (See Petition No. 

1130 Staff Report included in Attachment 1).  The Property is owned by the State and is used for 

emergency communications purposes.  An existing paved access driveway extends from Mount 

Parnassus Road to the existing communications facility.  (See Site Aerial Photograph included in 

Attachment 2). 

The existing tower is shared by the DESPP and the Town of East Haddam with antennas 

located at various levels.  Radio equipment associated with the existing antennas is located in an 

equipment shelter near the base of the tower. 

Cellco is licensed to provide wireless telecommunications services in the 700 MHz, 850 

MHz, 1900 MHz, 2100 MHz, 3550 MHz, 3600 MHz, and 3700 MHz (5G) frequency ranges in 

East Haddam and throughout the State of Connecticut.  Cellco’s wireless service in central 

portions of East Haddam is currently provided by four (4) existing macro-cell facilities, 

identified as Salem CT, a tower at 399 West Road in Salem, CT; Chester, a tower at 49 Wig Hill 

Road in Chester, CT; East Haddam CT, a tower at 135 Honey Hill Road in East Haddam; and 

East Haddam 2 CT, a tower at 33 Neptune Avenue in Moodus (East Haddam), CT.  Coverage 

Plots showing the extent of wireless service from these existing cell sites in Cellco’s 700 MHz 
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“base” frequencies alone, and together with service from the proposed East Haddam 3 Facility 

are included in Attachment 3.  As indicated on these plots, Cellco currently provides little or no 

reliable wireless service along significant portions of Routes 434 (Mount Parnassus Road) and 

local roads in the surrounding area in its 700 MHz operating frequencies.  The proposed East 

Haddam 3 Facility would allow Cellco to fill these gaps, improve wireless service in the area 

overall and also provide some capacity relief to its adjacent Salem cell site. 

III. Proposed East Haddam 3 Facility Modifications 

To accommodate Cellco’s need for improved wireless services in the area, Cellco 

proposes to extend the existing lattice tower by 40-feet.  If approved, Cellco will install twelve 

(12) antennas and remote radio heads (“RRHs”) on the extended tower at a centerline height of 

146 feet above ground level.  Cellco would install an equipment cabinet, a battery cabinet and 

diesel-fueled back-up generator all on the ground adjacent to the tower, within the existing 

fenced compound.  Project plans and specification for Cellco’s proposed antennas, remote radio 

heads (“RRHs”) and backup generator for the modified wireless facility showing all proposed 

site improvements are included in Attachment 4.  Included in Attachment 5 is a Structural 

Analysis Report (“SA”) and an Antenna Mount Analysis Report (“MA”) confirming that the 

existing tower, tower foundation, and Cellco’s proposed new antenna mounting system can 

support Cellco’s proposed modifications. 

IV. Discussion 

A. The Proposed Facility Modifications Will Not Have A Substantial Adverse 
Environmental Effect 

The Public Utility Environmental Standards Act (the “Act”), C.G.S. § 16-50g et seq., 

provides for the orderly and environmentally compatible development of telecommunications 

towers in the state to avoid “a significant impact on the environment and ecology of the State of 
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Connecticut.”  C.G.S. § 16-50g.  To achieve these goals, the Act established the Council, and 

requires a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility and Public Need for the construction of 

cellular telecommunication towers “that may, as determined by the council, have a substantial 

adverse environmental effect”.  C.G.S. § 16-50k(a). 

1. Physical Environmental Effects 

 Cellco respectfully submits that the proposed facility modifications will not involve a 

significant alteration in the physical and environmental characteristics of the Property or the 

surrounding area.  Cellco will install two equipment cabinets and a back-up generator within the 

limits of the existing fenced facility compound.  No tree clearing or facility expansion is required 

to accommodate Cellco’s ground-based equipment or the proposed tower extension. 

2. Visual Effects 

 As discussed in numerous other Council filings, visual impact of a tower is often the most 

significant and, in many cases, the only discernible environmental effect associated with such 

facilities.  To assess these conditions, Cellco, through its consultants, All-Points Technologies 

(“APT”) assessed the visual impact of the existing lattice tower and compared it to the visual 

impact of the proposed 161-foot lattice tower described in the Petition.  A copy of APT’s 

Visibility Analysis is included in Attachment 6. 

 The Visibility Analysis concludes that the upper portion of the modified lattice tower is 

not highly visible beyond the immediate vicinity of the Property.  The open steel weave of the 

lattice tower, combined with the rolling and wooded terrain within the two-mile radius study 

area, serve to minimize the visibility of the extended structure.  The taller tower may be more 

prominent in areas where the existing tower is visible, but no new areas of visibility are created 

by the proposed tower extension.  Overall, year-round visibility of the extended tower will 
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increase from approximately 12-acres for the existing structure to approximately 23 acres for the 

extended tower or 0.28% of the two-mile study area.  Seasonal visibility of the extended tower 

would occur over approximately 94 acres or 1.116% of the two-mile radius study area. 

3. Compliance with Radio Frequency Emissions Standards 

 Cumulative radio frequency (“RF”) emissions from the proposed replacement tower will 

not exceed the Maximum Permissible Exposure (“MPE”) standards adopted by the Federal 

Communications Commission (“FCC”).  Included in Attachment 7 is a Calculated Radio 

Frequency Emissions Report conforming that the existing State and municipal antennas together 

with the proposed Cellco antennas will operate well within MPE standards established by the 

FCC. 

4. FAA Summary Report 

 Included in Attachment 8 of this Petition is a Federal Airways and Airspace Summary 

Report (the “Summary Report”).  The Summary Report recommends that the FAA be notified of 

the existing structure and of the proposed extended structure to determine if obstruction marking 

and lighting is required.  Cellco will make the appropriate FAA notice filing if the Council 

approves the tower extension.  A copy of the FAA notification and the FAA’s final 

determination will be provided to the Council upon receipt. 

In sum, the effect of the modified facility on the environment would be minimal and 

limited, rather than significant.  This stands in contrast to typical proposals for new towers that 

frequently must be located on properties with no other approved towers, or with no development 

at all.  Thus, the proposed tower extension would not present a substantial adverse environmental 

effect and is not a modification for which the General Assembly intended to require a Certificate 

under C.G.S. § 16-50k(a). 
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B. Notice to the Town of East Haddam, Property Owner and Abutting Landowners 

 On February 22, 2024, a copy of this Petition was sent to East Haddam’s First Selectman 

Irene M. Haines, Land Use Administrator, James Ventres and the State of Connecticut, the 

Property owner.  Included in Attachment 9 is a copy of the letters sent to Ms. Haines, Mr. 

Ventres, and the State of Connecticut. 

Notice of Cellco’s intent to file the Petition together with a copy of the Petition was also 

sent to those owners whose land abuts the Property.  A sample abutter’s notice letter, and the list 

of those abutting landowners who were sent notice of the Petition is included in Attachment 10. 

C. A Conclusion That the Proposed Facility Modifications Will Not Have a 
Substantial Adverse Environmental Effect Would Be Consistent With Siting 
Council Precedent 

 The Council has previously determined, under similar circumstances, that the extension 

of an existing tower would have no substantial adverse environmental effect, does not require a 

Certificate and, most importantly, is preferable to the construction of a new tower in this area. 

V. Conclusion 

 Based on the information provided above, Cellco respectfully requests that the Council 

issue a determination in the form of a declaratory ruling that the 40-foot extension of the existing 

tower at the Property (from 121 feet to 161 feet), and the installation of Cellco antennas and 

RRHs on a mounting assembly at the 146-foot level and the installation of the radio equipment 

and a backup generator in the existing facility compound will not have a substantial adverse 

environmental effect and does not require the issuance of a Certificate of Environmental 

Compatibility and Public Need pursuant to § 16-50k of the General Statutes. 
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Respectfully submitted, 
 
CELLCO PARTNERSHIP d/b/a VERIZON 
WIRELESS 

By  
Kenneth C. Baldwin, Esq. 
Robinson & Cole LLP 
280 Trumbull Street 
Hartford, CT  06103-3597 
(860) 275-8200 
Attorney for the Petitioner 
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